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Reavised Estimate {December 2017}
S.N
Itom —
. FC Portél;n (& or LC Portion (Rs.)
A |Lot 1 Civil Works 5154,190,451 Rs.10,104,226,722
B ibLot 2 Hydromechanical Works €14,387.216 Rs.746,846,475
C |Lot 3 Electromechanical Works $92,186,461 Rs.551,493,273
D |Lot 4 T/L and S/S Works $20,227,792 Rs.771,312,668
$266,604,704
E Sub-Total (=A+B+C+D} Rs.12,173,879,138
€14,397,2186
F |Access Read and Infrastructure 0 Rs.1,960,854,750
G |Engineering and Construction Supernvision 530,485,872 Rs.1,252,740,812
H {Ownear's Administration Cosis 4] Rs.1,717 782,545
Land  Acquisiion, Environmental Mitigaton &
! Management o} Rs.458,105,273
J |Sub-Total (=F+G+H+l) $30,486,872 Rs.5,389,483,481
$297,020,576
K Total {(=E+.J) Rs.17,663,362,619
€14,397,216
. " : $7,427,264
L Additional Co_mmgentfles (2.5% of Items E, G & H Rs.378,610,06
above) in Revised Estimate €359,930
Additicnal Cast in NPR incurred due to dewvaluation of
M INPR in comparison to Base Exchange Rates in items A o] Rs 7,065,723,00
to [ and G above in Revised Estimate
$7,427,264
N fotal (=L+Ni) HSs./,444,3435,06
€369,920
$304,617,841 :
= Grand Total ("'K+N) Rs.26,007,695,685|"
A €14 767,146 ;
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited

1. Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limitedwhich
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31%tAshad 2077 (15th July 2020), statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and noles o the {inanciul statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opumon and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects/possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion,
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as of
Ashad 31, 2077, and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

2. Basis for qualified opinion
2.1 Differences against third party confirmation

The balance confirmation of Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. LC No. 001LCFU13-0406 for Lot 2
amounting to NRs.1.32crore is not made available for our verification.

The accumulated interest on loans received from Rastriya BeemaSansthan as per books (NRs.
149.72 crores) has been understated by 0.86 crores compared to the balance confirmation
provided by Rastriya BeemaSansthan (NRs. 150.58 crores),

The accumulated interest on loans received {rom Citizen Investment Trust as per books (NRs.
187.04 crores) has been understated by 4.77 crores compared to the balance confirmation
provided by Citizen Investment Trust (NRs. 191.81 crores).

2.2  Short- deduction of TDS on Interest

During the fiscal year 207677, company hasbooked interest of NRs 1,83,62,29,7070n long term
loan received from Nepal Government via Nepal Electricity Authority. As per section 88 of the
Income Tax Act 2058, Company shall require to deduct TDS @15% on gross amount of interest
having source in Nepal. However, Company has only deducted TDS of NRs 6,55,79,632which
shows the shortfall withholding of NRs 209,854,823.

2.3 Non-Compliance of Reporting Requirements
2,3.1 Non-compliance with NAS 21: As per paragraph 30 of NAS 21, The Effect of Change
in Foreign Exchange Rate, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other

comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss shgiEisgecognized in
3




other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item 1is
recognized in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized in
profit or loss. However, the company is recognizing foreign exchange loss of NIts. 12.83 crore
(till the end of TY 2076-77 NRs. 290.14 crore) as capital WIP which is not in accordance with
NAS. As a consequence, loss is understated and assct is overstated.

2.3.2 Non-compliance of NFRS-NAS read with IFRIC 12

IFRIC 12 is applicable and its non-compliance has implications on recognition, measurement,
and disclosure of items impacting the financial statements. Since, IFRIC 12 has not been
complied with; impact of the non-adoption/noncompliance on the financial statement has not
heen ascertained by the management and is not ascertainable at our end.

2.4 Non-scttlement of advances/ non recognition ol expense

The advance provided to District Development Committee/Office, Dolakha for NRs.43.43 lakh
(pending since 70-71) and Districl Acministration office, Dolaklia for NRs.1.24 crore from
earlier years have not been sellled durlug the yeal. The advance carried out for such @ loug

duration might be the result of non-recognition of appropriate expenses against such release of
advance.

2.5 Project Cost

The initially estimated project cost of NRs.3,540.97crore (USD 441 million) was revised to
NRs.4,929.55 crore excluding interest during the construction (IDC) period and approved by
Board of Director vide board meeting no. 188 dated 2074.12.30 as recommended by the Cost
Review Committee. However, the company has not estimated/included interest cost during the
construction period (IDC) in the revised estimated cost. Out of the revised estimated cost, the
total expenditures incurred till end of F/Y 2076/77 amounts to NRs.4,957.58crore (excluding
IDC) with additional interest cost of NRs. 2672.17 crores.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements sectlon of our reporl. We are independent of the company
in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook ol Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters

The key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the eurrent period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole. There are no other
key audit matters to report.

4. Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
financial statements.

The management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and

fair view in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal

control as the management determines is necessary Lo enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.




In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the managewmenl either

intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

5. Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objeclives are to obluin reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are [ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ol assuratce,
but is not a gnarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered waterial i, individually o1 in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinjon. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting {rom fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control;

o Eyaluate the appropriateness ol aceounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by lhe managernent;

o Conclude on the appropriatencss of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to
continue as a going concern; and

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought Lo bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

6. Report on requirement of the Companies Act 2063 and other regulatory
requirements

As per the requirements of Section 115 of the Companies Act, 2063 (First Aineudient 2074), we
further report that:

a)
V)]

c)
d)

f)

CA Naresél Dhungans

N.D, & Associates

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
kuowledge aud beliel were uecessaty fol the purpose of our audit.
In our opinion the Company has kept proper books of account as required by law so far,
as appears from our examinations of those Books
"The financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.
Expect for the matters specified in basis for qualified opinion paragraph, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
financial statement the said Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Cash Flow Statement,
read together with the notes forming part of the accounts give the information required
by the Companies Act 2063 (First Amendment 2074) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view:
i. In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
Ashadh, 2077; and
i, Tn the case of Tncome Statement, of the results of operations of the Company for
the year ended on 315t Ashadh, 2077; and
iii. Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of Cash inflow and outflow of Company for
the year ended on that date.
Neither we have come across any of the information about the misappropriation of fund
by the directors or any of the representative or company's staffs during the course of our
audit nor have we received any such information from the management.
No accounting fraud has been observed during the eourse of our audit.

Chartered Accountanis
Chartered Accountants
o] 2} T
UDIN : 210627CA007301SqLp UDIN :210627CA01033M3IIP
Kathmandu, Nepal

27t June 2021
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__Upper Tamakoshi Hydropdwer Limited (UTKHPL)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at Ashad 31, 2077 {July 15, 2020)
Asat As at
_Particulars Notes Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076
{July 15, 2020} {Suly 16, 2019)

ASSETS

Non Currant Assots:

Property, plant and equipment 7.1 7,077,343.85 8,193,653.75
Capital work-in-progress 7.2 76,288,203,748.60 66,755,357,745.65
beferred tax Assets 7.3 -
Tota! Non-Current Assets 76,295,281,092.45 66,763,551,399.43

| _Current Assets:

Inventories 1.4 4,696,910.16 4,787,495.74
(:ash and cash eguivalants 75 423,357,448.40 1,041,897,708.31
{ther current assets 7.6 1,576,198,996.29 1,651,218,187.26
Total Current Assets 2,004,253,354.85 2,69/7,804,395.31
Totul assels 78,299,534,447.30 69,461,454,794.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity:

Equity share capital 7.7 10,590,000,000.00 10,590,000,000.00
Retained Earnings 7.8 (790,593,582.13) {638,515,452.52)
Total Equity 9,799,406,417.87 9,951,484,547.48
Non-Current Liabilities:

Long Term Loans 7.9 34,500,000,000.00 31,500,000,000.00
Provisions 7.10 26,661,252,15 10,460,154.19
Deferred Lax liabilities 7.3 - -
Interest on Long term loan 711 24,674,656,326.92 19,227,517,520.44
Other Non-Current Liabilities 7.12 986,297,777.23 843,384,556.22
Total Non-Current Liabilities 60,187,615,356.30 51,581,362,230.85
Current Liabilities:

Short Term Loans 7.13 6,000,000,000.00 5,000,000,000 00
Other Current Liabilities /.14 2,312,5612,678.13 2,928,008,016.41
Total Curtent Liabilities 8,312,512,673.13 7,928,608,016.41
Total Equity and Liabilities 78,299,534,447.30 69,461,454,794.74
The accompanying explanatory notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Mukunda Adhlkaﬂ Bigyan Prasad Shrestha
Accounts Chief Chief Executive Officer
Board of Directors of UTKHPL

Suresh Raj Khakurel
Finance Chief

Madan Timsina
Member

Damodar Brasad Subedi D|I||ram Adhukarl

CA Naresh Dhungana
S.Subedi & Associates  N.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants

Alt. Member Member

Date: Jestha 28, 2078
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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_Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2077 {July 15, 2020)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2676
{July 15, 2020) {July 16, 2018}

Revenue /.15 -
Generation Cxpenses 716 - -
Gross profit - -
Depreciation 7.1 (2,872,975.62) (3,048,434.38)
Other income 7.17 1,495,766.53 562,956.62
Foreign Exchange Gain/{Loss) 7.18 (90,780,466.83) 2,770,124.93
Administrative and gther operating expenses 7.19 {61,698,456.69) {53,208,094.24}
Profit/{Loss) from Operation {153,856,132.61) (52,923,447.07)
Flnance Incorme 720 - _ -
Finange Costs 7.21 {207,622.00) {252,292.00)
Profit/{Loss) Befare Bonus and Tax {154,063,754.61) (53,175,739.07)
Income [ax Cxpense
Current tax _ -
Deferred tax income/(expense) - -
Net Profit for the year (154,063,754.61) {53,175,739.07)
Other comprehensive Income:
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods - -
i. Re-measurement {losses) / gains on post-employment
defined benefit plans - -
ii. Equity instruments through other comprehensive
income - -
iii. Tax relating to items that will not to be reciassified to
profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive gain/{loss} for the year, net of tax - -
Total Comprehensive gain/{loss) for the year, net of tax (154,063,754.61} {53,175,739.07)
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each
Baslc Earnings per share  NPR {1 45} {0.50)
Diluted Earnings per share - NPR (1.45) {0.50}

The accompanying explanatory notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.

MukundaAdhikari
Accounts Chief

Suresh Raj Khakure!
Finance Chief

Board of Directors of UTKHPL

Madan Timsina
Member

Member

e
Damod$&r.Prasad Subedi

Alt. Member

Dilhram Adhikari Hite
Member

Date; Jestha 28, 2078
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Bigyan Prasad Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer

Lekhanath Kcnra1a

Dev Shakya
Chairipan

CA> Satish Subedi
S.Subedi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Naresh Dhungana
N.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Particuiars Year ended Year ended

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

(buly 15, 2020) {July 16, 2015)
A, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year {154,003,754.61) {53,175,738.07)
Adjustments for: - -
Loss/{gain) on sale of assets held for sale - -
Depredalion on property, plant and eguipment 2,872,975.62 3,048,434.38
Amortization of Intangible Assets - -
Depreciation Being Revenue Portion of Grant Aid - -
Provision lur ernployee benefits - -
Provision for Bonus -
Finance income - -
linpairment of Intangible assct - -
Tinance cost -
Iimpalement loss on investrment In subsldlarles and dssotiales -
Loss/ {gain) on sale of Property, plant and equipment - -
Working capita} adjustments: - -
{increase)/ Decrease in Trade receivables - -
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets - -
{increase)/ Decrease in other assets 75,019,190.97 (126,499,149.33)
{Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 90,589.58 13,407,719.44
Increase / [Decrease) in trade payables
Increase / {Decrease) in Provision 16,201,097.96 (1,268,130.97)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities {616,095,343.28) 532,434,758.25
Cash generated from operations - -
Bonus paid - -
income Tax Pald - -
Prior year adjusiment 1,985,625.00 1,244,957.75
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (673,989,618.76} 369,152,850.45
B. CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -
proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
{Increase)/ Decrease In Project work-in-progress {5,532,846,002.95) {11,198,295,603.67)
Proceeds from sale of Assets Held for Sale - -
interest Received - -
(Increase)/ Decrease Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates - -
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment ~ {1,756,665.69) (1,875,236.83)
Purchase of Intangibles - -
Grant Aid received/ {refunded) - -
Rank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - -
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {9,534,602,668.64) (11,200,170,840.50)
C. CASH FLOWS FRCM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in share capital - -
Borrow/ {Repayment) of Long term loan 3,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
Borrow/ {Repayment) of Short term loan 1,000,000,000.00 3,100,000,000.00

Increase/(Decrease] in Non-current liabiiities

142,913,221.00

126,936,125.86

o o WL o

L

Dividend paid R _
Interest paid - _
Issue of Share Capital - 2,647,500,000.00
Share Issue Expenses - (31,974,769.84)
Interest during the Construction subject to Capitalization 5,447,138,806.49 4,801,670,170.98
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 9,590,052,027.48 11,644,131,527. ‘,‘SSOCMQ\
)
(25 -\‘
INCREASE/(DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS E]| ;
Net foreign exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents - \w\ S
él
. . ; RTE TERES D
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Refer Note7.5) 1,041,897,708.31 228, /44407 L. }35 £
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CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Refer Note7.5) 423,357,448.40 1,041,897,708.31

The accompanylng explanalory notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

e ‘ p

Suresh Raj Khakurel Mukunda Adhikari  Bigyan Prasad Shrestha
finance Chief Accountg Chief Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors of UTKHPL

Lekhanath Koirala

/Qq\f-@}")\/ s Auditors

Madan EHmsina

Member Member Member
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Damocdar prasad Subedi  Dilliram Adhikari Hi - Satish Subedi
Alt. Member Member S.Subedi & Associates  N.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants
Date: Jestha 28, 2078

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2077 {July 15, 2020)

Madan Tirnsina
Member

Lekhanath Koirala
Member

Damodér Prasad Subedi
Alt. Member

Dilliram Adhikari
Member

Date- lestha 28, 2078
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

S$.Subedi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Particulars Equity Share Retained Earnings and Reserves Total
Capital Share General Retained
Premium | Raserve Farnings

Balance as at 01 Shrawan 2075 7,94.2,500,000.00 - - - | (554,609,901.36) 7,387,890,098.64
Profit for the year - - - (53,175.739.07} (53,175,739.07)
Cther comprelensive income - - - - -
Share Issue 2,647,500,000.00 - - - 2,647,500,000.00
Share Issue ExXpenses - - - | (31,974,709.84) {31,974,769.84}
Total comprehensive income 2,647,500,000.00 - {85,150,508.91) | 2,562,349,491.09
Dividends to shareholders - - - - -
Prior Year's Adjustment - - 1,244,95/.75 1,244,957.75
Balarico as al 31 Asliad 2076 10,590,000,000.00 - | (638,515452.52) | 9,951484,047.48
Profit for tha year - - - | {154,063,754.61) (154,063,754.61)
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Share lssue - - - -
Sleara Issuc Expenses _ - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - 1 {154,063,754.61) | (154,0063,754.61)
Dividends to shareholders - - - - -
Prior Year's Adjustment - - - 1,985,625,00 1,985,625.00
Balance as at 31 Asha(cllOW 10,590,000,000.00 - - | {790,593,582.13) | 9,799,406,417.87
Suresh Raj Khakurel Mukundﬁikari Bigyan Prasad Shrestha

Finance Chief Accounts Chief Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors of UTKHPL
e B ‘-‘_&\
(7;/ } QY)\C?/ Auditors

As per our report of even date.

M.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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1. Reporting Entity:

Nepal Eleciricity Authority (NEA) has established an autonomous company Uppar Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited (UTKHPL) as
an executing agency for the development and implementation of the hydro power Project.It is a fimited liability company having
its registered office in Kathmandu, It has been registered under Companies Act, 2063 (revised 2074) in Nepal on Falgun 25, 2063
(March 09, 2007) Registrar of Companies allowed company to initiate its transaction since Baisakh 12, 2065. Its site office and
hydropower plant, under construction, is located at Bigu Village Municipality, Ward No. 1, tamabagar, Dolkha.

The majority share (51%) of the Campany is held by four public entities, namely, Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA), Nepal Telecom
[NTC), Citizen Investment Trust (CIT) and Rastriya Beema Sansthan {RBS). NEA has 41% stake, NTC has 6% and CIT & RBS each
has 2% stake in the company. Similarly, general public and residents of dolakha district are holding 15% and 10% share
respectively. The remaining 24% share has been held by contributors in Employees Provident Fund (EPF), NEA & Company’s
staffs and staffs of Institutional organizations providing loan to the company.

This company has been established as Speclal Purpose Project Vehicle [SPPV) company to execute 450 MW Upper Tamakoshl
Hydroclectric Project [UTKHEP). The company’s main line of businass invalves development of hydropower prajects Including

detalled feasibilily, construclion and vperalioi. The company hes planned to devetop hydropower projects in Tamakoshi River
basin us Lelow;

» First Staga: Uppar Tamakoshi Hydrozlactric Project (UTKHEP) — Peaking Run-of-River {PROR) type
»  Second Slage: Slandalone Rolwaling Khola Hydrocloctric Project and Divarsion of Relwaling Khola to the UTKHEP intake pond

UTKHEP is the national pride project which is entirely financed from the domestic financlal Institutlons and comnpantes. Curreitly

project s in its final stage of construction and it is expacted to ba commissioned in the F/Y 2077/078. When completed it will be
the largest hydroelectric plant in Nepal.

in the second stage, company has a plan to divert the water of Rolwaling Xhola to head works of UTKHEP so as to Increases dry

season energy of UTKHEP by 221 GWhrs. Apart from diversion, standalone Rolwaling Khola Hydroelectric Project (RKHEP) of
20.2 MW will also be constructed.

Financial year of this company starts from 0% Shrawan every year and ends on Ashad end of next year. Financial Statements of
the company comprises Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Cormnprehensive Income,
Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts.

2. Basis of Preparation and measurement

NOTE 2.1. Statement of Compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of Nepal (ICAN]. The Tinancial Statements have also been prepared in accordance with
the relevant presentational requirement of the Companies Act, 2063 {revised- 2074) of Nepal.

NOTE 2.2,  Basis of Preparation:

The Financial Statements comprises the financial statements of UTKHPL for the year ended 31 Ashad, 2077. The financial

statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the
periods presented in the financial staiements.

NOTE 2.3. Presentation of Financial Statements and Presentation Currency:
Assets and liabilities, wherever applicable, are bifurcated in Current and Non-Current based on their respective maturity as well
as the company's normal operating cycle.

The functional and presentation currency of the company is Nepalese Rupee (NPR) which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the company operates.

NOTE 2.4. IFRIC 12 Considerations:

IC (International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee) 12 gives guidance on the accounting by operators for public-
private service concession arrangements. This interpretation sets out general principles on recognizing and measuring
igations and related rights in service concession arrangements. The company has considered about the applicability of IFRIC
Service Concessian Arrangement, issued by International Accounting Standard Board {|ASB) for preparation and presentataon

of financial statements. Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited, after due consideration has not applied IFRIC 12 while preparin;
these financial staternents on the following grounds:
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»  The company selis electricity to Nepal Electricity Authority at price independent of the price charged by NEA to general
public. NEA, for the ultimate sale of electricity is bound by the rates determined by Electricity tariff cammission set up by
Lhe government, whereas NEA purchases electricity on the basis of different commercial agreement with the power
producers. Elactricity Toriff Commission daes not determine the rate at which NEA purchases or has to purchase electricity

from the power producers. There have heen instances where the rates charged by NEA to the general publicis lower than
1t paid ta some of the power producers.

s  The company does not receive any specific concession for the use of the natural resource. The company has to'pay tothe
government for the use of the natural resources in the form of royalty.

¢ The company under Power Purchase Agreement {PPA) sells enargy to NEA and not directly to the general public

¢ Though the project is to be transferred to the government at the end of the licence period the legal title of the project is

with the company, including the controt of access to the project site. In addition, the company has right to pledge the
assets as lien for availing finances from financial institutions.

NOTE 2.5. Financial Period:

The campary prepares financial statements in accordance with Nepalese Mnancial year. The financlal year startz from Shrawan
01 and ends on Ashad end of next calendar year. The corresponding dates for the English calendar are as follows:

Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar Date / Period Gregarian Calendar Date / Perlod
Reporting Date Ashad 31, 2077 July 15, 2020

Comparative Reporting Date Ashad 31, 2076 July 16, 2019

Reporting period Shrawan 01, 2076 — Ashad 31, 2077 July 17, 2019-July 15, 2020
Comparative Reparting Period Shrawan 01, 2075 — Ashad 31, 2076 July 17, 2018—luly 16, 2019

NOTE 2.6. Basis of Measurement:

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for certain material items that have been
measurad at fair value as required by the relevant NFRS and explainad in the ensuing policies below.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies, [he Company makes certain estimates and assumptlons regarding the future events. Estimales
and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonabla. Future results could differ from these estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospactively in current and future periods, except otherwise stated, Specific
accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the note, wherever have been applied along with the nature
and effect of the changes of accounting estimates, if any. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year primarily includes: -

NOTE3.1. Useful life and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Management reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such life is dependent upen an
assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their likely 2conomic fife, based on various internal and external

factors including relative efficiency and oparating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best
information available to the Management.

NOTE 3.2. Impalrment of Property Plant and Equipment:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverabie amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value tess costs to sefl and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discou

estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipaﬁci(wﬁnjdity prices, market demand and syg
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economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes
in the above-mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

Since, hydropower plant is still in the process of construction and alt the expenditure which are directly attrlbutable to

acquisition, construction or production of the aseats are shown as Lapital Work in Progress (CWIP) hence test of impalrment of
asset is not done for those assets.

NOTE3.3. Contingencies:

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential

liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent
ligbilities. Such lfabilities are disclosed In the notes but are not recognised.

NOTE 3.4. Fali Value Measureimerndls:

[he management detarmines the approprlate valuation techniques and Inpuls for falr value rmeasuresnents. In estimaling the
it value of an asset of a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not avallable, the Company engages Lhitd parly qualified valuators Lo perform the valuation. [he management works closely
with the gualified external valuators to cstablish the appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the model.

NOTE3.5. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets:

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upen the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The Company based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumnstances

and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond
the control of the Company.

4.  New standards in use but nct yet effective

Standards as pronounced by the Accounting Standards Board Nepal (ASB Nepal} has been used in the preparation of financial

statements. Any departure from the requirements of NFRS, if any, has been separately disclosed in the Notes to Accounts/
Explanatory Notes.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after the
pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporatas within NFRS.

5. Newstandards and interpretation not adopted

There have been amendments Lo the standards issued by 1ASB and applicability of the new standards have been notified for
IFRS. These amendments and new standards become applicable only when ASB-Nepal pronounces them.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces I1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 also replaces the

existing ‘incurred loss’ impairment approach with an expected credit loss approach, resulting in earlier recognition of credit
losses.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts. The new standard introduces the core principle that revenue
must be recognized when the goods or services are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundied goods or
services that are distinct must be separately recognized, and any discounts or rebates on the contract price must generally be
allocated to the separate elements. When the consideration varies for any reason, minimum amourits must be recognized if

they are not at significant risk of reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with customers have to be capitalized and amortized
over the period when the benefiis of the contract are consumed.

Financial instruments, leases and insurance contracts are out of scope of IFRS 15, and so this standard is not expected to have a
significant impact on the company. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2018,

FRS 16 Leases

n January 13, 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 to replace IAS 17 Leases. The new standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Al leases result in the lessee obtaining the right to use an
asset at the start of the lease and, lease payments are made over time, also obtaining flnanclng. Accordingly, ITRS 16 ellminajes
the classificatlon of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as Is required BIAS 17 and instea Introduces asl '-‘
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lessee accounting model. Lessees will be required to recognize: (a) assets and liabilities for all leases with & term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value; and (b} depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease
liabililies in e income statement. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. (FRS 18 is affective for annual periods baginning on or aftar lanuary 01, 2019,

Amendrments to 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

The amendment will require disclosure of a reconcitiation of movements in liabilities arising from financing aclivities. These
revised requirements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2017,

Amendments to JAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendment has clarified the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses on debt instrument
The entity will have to recognize deferred tax assets for unrealized losses that arise as a result of discounting cash flows of debt
Inskrumetits al tnatkel Interest rates, even I I expacls to hold the hstrument Lo snaturily and no Lax will be payable upon
collecting the princigal amount. The ecenemic benefit embodied in the deferred tax asset arises from the ability of the holder
of the debt instrument to achieve future gains {unwinding of the effects of discounting) without paylng taxes on Lhuse gains.
Thase ravised requirements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2017,

6. Significant Accounting Policies:
I he significant accounting poficles of company are explalned below:

NOTEG.L. Property, Plant and Equipment:

On transition to NFRS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as
on Shrawan 01, 2075, except otherwise stated in the notes to accounts.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at

historical cost less accumulated depraciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it Is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wiil flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured refiably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the component/part has a cost
which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.
These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusled, if appropriate.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated

as the difference betwaen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} ts included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised,

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction} less
their residual values over their usefut lives, using the straight-line method.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefut lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis, except otherwise stated in the notes to accounts.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets determined by the
management. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charged on pro-rata basis in the year of purchase. The company has a
policy to charge the depreciation an Property, Plant and Equipment on Straight Line Method assuming that the value of assets

will be NRs. 1 at the end of economic fife of the asset. Estimated useful life and Depreciation rate of property plant and
equipment are as under:

S.N. Assets Block Estimated Useful Life Depreciation Rate
1. Self-owned and used Land NA NA sy
2. Office Building 30 years 3.33% //Q\
Kesldenttal Bullding 30 yewrs n 3.33% (S €
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4. Other Civil Construction Work 30 years 3.33%
5 Transmission Sub-Station & Switchgear 30 years 3.33%
6. Vehicles, Car, Jeep and Van 15 years 6.67%
7. Vehicles- Others 5 years 20%
8. Furniture angd Fixtures 5 years . 20%
Q, Office Equipment 6.66 years 15%
10. Mlscellaneous Assels 2 years 50%

Only those assets having value of more than NRs. 5,000 per item are capitalized.

Leasehold improvements are depreclated over the perlod of lease or estimated useful life, whichever is lower, on straight line
basis.

Restriction on PPE

Tls& cornpany has to Lransfer the entire generation unit to Government of Nepal under BOOT arrangement after expiry of period
of generation license i.e. Mangsir 16, 2102 or 30 years from Commerciat Operation Date [COD) whichever is earlier.

NOTLG.2. Capitat Work in Progress (CWIP):

Assets in the course of construction are capltalized and shown as assels under capilal work in progress account (CWIP). AL the
point witen Lhe construction of the project is complele and it is teady management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment 2nd depreclalion coimmences. Where an obligalion
{legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its usefu: life,
the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of
acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding fability is recognized. Revenue generated from generation

during the trial period is capitalized. Assets that are directly related to the project, the project being in progress, has been
capitalized in the Capital Work in Progress.

NOTE 6.3, Other Intangible Assets:

[ntangible assets with finite useful fives that are acguired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on materiality, accounting prudence
and significant benefits expected to flow there from for a period longer than one year.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

NOTE 6.4. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

Al the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews Lhe carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whethar there is any Indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When z reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are

also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are aliocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent aliocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at |sast
annually, and impairment loss is recognized whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks spacific to tha asset for which tha estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

"98?1
thma,;z-‘:f

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit} is increased
the revised estimate of its recovarable amount, but so that the increased carr amount does not exceed the carrying am
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that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit} in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

NOTE 6.5, Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs consist of interast and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing

cost also Includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustrent to interest costs.

Borrowings has been solely made for the construction of the project hence interest en such borrowings is considered {o be
directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for Its Intended use or sale hence borrowing cost Is capltalized as part of Lhe cost of the assel unlll such Urne as the assels
are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. A period of twelve months or more is considered as the substantial pariod
of time. Mence the borrowing costs are not recognized in the statement of profit or Loss.

Any investment income earned on the temporary investment of borrowed funds pending their expenditure on quallfylng assets
is deducted from borrowing costs efigible for canitalization,

NOTE 6.6.Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Casli ard ash equivalents in the balance sheel comptise Casly 4l baisks and in hand and dernand deposits with an original

maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible intc known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

NOTE®S.7. Inventories:

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

NOTE6.8. Revenue Recognition:
6.8.1.  Sale of Electricity:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and that the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced

for estimated rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue is reccgnized when substantial risks and rewards of ownership is
transferred to the buyer under the terms of contract.

6.8.2. Interest income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
Lhe amount of incorne can be measured reliably. Inlerest income is accrued on 4 lime basis, by 1eference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

NOTE69. Foreign Currency Transactions:

The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary econcemic environment in which it operates.
The functional currency of the Company is Nepalese Rupee (NPR).

in preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
{foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The effect from fluctuation of exchange rate raised while initially recognizing the transaction as per contract on the base rate
mentioned in the contract and settling the transactions at the settlement date has been recognized in Capital Work in Progress

for Main Civil Construction woarks. Foreign exchange gain/loss occurring from other activity has been charged to Statement of
Profit or Loss.

a forelgn gurrency shall be translated using Lhe excliange rale sl the dale of,
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NOTE 6.10. Employment Benefits:

The Company has schemes of employment benefits namely provident fund, employee gratuity, other retirement benefit and
accumulated leave payable as per employee service manuazl,

The liabilities regarding retirement of the employee’s remains with the Nepal Electricity Authority, who have been seconded to
this company by NEA, as most of the employees are permanent employees of Nepal Electriclty Authorlly and deputed for Lhe
execution of the project. However, the company has paid monthly safaries to the employees deputed under the project and
annual leave encashment. In addition to this, company has paid amount equivalent to basic salary of the employees to Nepal
Electricity Authority for deputation of employees.

Ihe company has adopted the policy to provide gratulty at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary per month from Balshak 2076. Su,

the provision for such retirement benefits has been made as per prevailing policy of company which is as per Labour Act 2074
and rules also.

Tha company has a policy to exarcise employass’ stack option, according to which, employeas exercised the option during the
fiscal yaar 2071/0/2.

DEFHNEL CONTRIBUTION PLAN — PROVIDENT FUND

Under delined contribulion plans, providenl fund, the Cormpeny pays pre-defined arnounts o separale funds and does not have
any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. Contributions to defined contribution schemes (Provident fund) are
charged tothe profit ar loss statement in the year to which they relate as the company has no further deflned obligations beyond

monthly contributions. Contributions to defined contribution schemes are deposited with Employees Provident Fund
{Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh).

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN — GRATUITY

The Company providas for defined benefits in the form of gratuity which is non-funded. The liability or asset recognised in the

balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the value of present liability of gratuity as per prevailing Acts and
Regulations.

The Company recognises incremental amount of provisions of gratuity in Statement of Profit or Loss.
The Company’s obligation is classified as current liabilities.

Actuarial valuation as per NAS 18, “Employee Benefits” have not been carried out as major poriton of employees working in the
company are NEA employees and liability of post-retirement benefits lies with NEA. In case of company’s employee, the company
has adopted the policy to provide gratuity at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary per month from Baishak 2076.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liabilivy is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the

period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee and contractual employees, benetits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liability of leave salary payable of NEA employees is recognized when an employee has more than 60 days of accumulated home
leave,

NOTE6.11. Income Tax:

The commercial operation of the company has not been started hence no tax liability has arisen to the company. Further
company is entitlad to Tax holiday of 10 years from commencement of commercial operation (CoD).

Deferred tax assets or liabilities have not been recognized since the company is entitled to tax holiday of 10 years after CoD.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for carry forward of tax losses as management estimates that it is not probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which unused tax losses can be utilised due 1o tax holiday.

for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse st

(consolidgllon of shares). e
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. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income {net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of ail dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are
deemed to be dilutlve only If thelr converslon to equity shares would decrease the nel proflt per share fian conlinuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless

they have been issued at a later date. Diluted EPS has not been calculated as no potential equity exists as on the reporting
periods.

NOTF 6.13. Provisions, Contingencies and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
esllinale can be rriatie of Lie sinount of Uie oldigation

When the Company expects same or ali of a provision to be reimhursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reirnbursetnient is recognised g5 o sepdl dte asset, bul only when e reimburseinent is virtually certain,

[ne expense relating to a provislon Is presented tn the statement of profit and loss net of any relmbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are
fower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value
of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before
a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets asscciated with that contract,

A contingent Hability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the controt of the Company or a present obligation that is
not recognized because it is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
Hability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize 2 contingent liability but discloses its existence in the standaione financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

NOTE6.14.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

6.14.1. Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the
related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at
transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition ar issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial hiabilities
at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial
asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

6.14.2. Effective Interest Method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income/ expense arising on financial instrumenits after applying an effective Interest rate is recognized in the statement of profit

or Joss. Where interest component is present in the financial instruments, the implicit interest rate approximates the effecti
interest rate.
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NOTE 6.15. Financial Assets:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
abjective is to hold these assets in order to coilect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a
business model whase objective is to hold these assets in order to coflect contractual cash flows or to sell these flnanclal assets

and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of princigal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Hnancial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value
througli Lhe slalement of profit and loss.

lor financlal assets maturing within ane year from the halance sheet date, the carrylng amounts approximate falr value due to
the shorter maturity of these instruments.

Impairmant of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit tosses is recogrised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through
the statement of profit or loss.

The company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit Joss model. For financial assets whose credit
risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is
recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments
has significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under NFRS 9. If the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateratised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differences between the carrying amounts measured at the date of de
recognition and the cansideration received is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

NOTE6.16.  Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments:
Classification as Debt or Equity

Financial liabilities and equity instrumants issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements enterad into and the definitions of a financial ability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

O\ { Baneshwor

(S frinancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to rei
)=/ Kathmandu

older for aloss itincurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment yhen dus in accordance with the ter
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instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised Initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

De-recognition of financial liability

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under Lhe liabifily is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the orlginal llabllity and the
recognition of a new liablllty. The difference In the respectlve carrying amounts Is recognlsed in Lhe stalement of profil and loss.

OFF-SETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheel if there is @

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

NOTE6.1/, Leases:

the determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a leasc is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inceplion of Lhe lease. Tha arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even it that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement. A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

THE COMPANY AS A LESSEE

A lease that transfers substantally all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Aleased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the assat. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will

chtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased asset or, at the
present value of the minimum jease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is Jower. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly

attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the
borrowing costs,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term unless either:

a. Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the paytnenis Lo the lessors
are not on that basis; or

b. The payments to the lessor are structurad to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s

expected inflationary cost increases. I payments to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this
condition is not met.

THE COMPANY AS LESSOR

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-fine basis over the term of the relevant lease except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and reccgnised on a straight-line basis over the [ease term.

NOTE 6.18. Segment Reporting:

The commpany is engaged in unly one Lusingss aclivily of "Generation and Sale of Eleclricity”. Thus, separale segrnenl informalion
is not provided as per NFRS 8 "Operating Segments”, .
! a_;/@i 'Q"\/
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NOTE 7.2. Capital Work in Progress:
Refer Note 6.2 for accounting policy on Capltal Work in Progress {CWIP)

Hydropower plant is still in the process of construction and all the expenditure which are directly attributable to acquisition and

construction of the assets are shown as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP} details of which is as given hereunder:

. Opening as at Addition during FY Tra'nsfer Totalasat
Particulars 01049076 gy during FY 31.03.2077
2076-77
Land 108,521,382.28 176,731.05 - 108,698,113.33
Residential Building 62,824,614.43 - - 62,824,614.43
Other Civil Construction 9,229,926.17 - - 9,229,926.17
Uther Structures 2,5/1,/30.04 1,551,778.60 - 4,123,508.64
Hydraulle Works 37,9724,490,(119 98 2,044,218,120 17 - 34,969,308,140 15
Kf”smmion Line & 5/5 above 33 2,293,017,324.43 154,463,529.75 . 2,447,480,054.18
Kfnsmission Line & S/S below 33 59,967,665.60 - - £9,967,605.60
Workshop Plant and Equipment 621,952.00 - - 621,952.00
Vehicles 14,217,200.67 - - 14,217,200.67
Et";'ﬁ:)"u‘;‘;;szfoet”;zsp::;;:f:[y 897,623,029.41 129,181,629.00 - 1,026,804,658.41
Stores and Services 698,726.41 - - 698,726.41
Repairs & Maintenance 1,173,575.01 - - 1,173,57%.01
Repair and Maintenance-Plant 882,383.85 5,424.00 - 887,807.85
Repair and Maintenance-Civil 14,890,860.78 4,028,832.33 - 18,915,693.11
Eizair & Maintenance-Transmission 2.351,809.62 } ; 2,351,809.62
Fuel {Vehicle} 63,801,171.92 9,259,788.03 - 73,060,959.95
Mobil {vVehicle) 7,459,523.34 1,526,290.88 - 8,985,814.22
Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 93,098,456.62 22,045,509.02 - 115,147,965.65
Administrative Expense 33,611,389.11 4,576,206.87 - 38,187,595,98
Small Tools 459,037.57 135,744.64 - 594,782.22
Transportation 7,366,906.20 1,639,245.00 - 9,606,151.20
Land and Property Tax 39,181,041.72 5,030,879.95 - 4421192167
Finance Cost (IDC) 20,434,797,812 67 6,286,924,600.62 - 26,731,72?,4??.?9
Finance Charges 32,348,937.05 - - 32,348,937.05
Other Expenses 12,913,658.30 - - 12,913,658.30
Feasibility £xpense 170,571,905.88 - - 170,571,905.82
Consultancy 4,669,052,364.32 707,632,037.18 - 5,376,724,401.50
Environment Study Expenditure 9,241,791.41 - - 9,241,791.41
Expenses of Central Office 3,630,712.80 - - 3,630,712.80
Infrastructure Development 469,854,472.51 5,771,261.34 - 475,625,733.85
Access Road upgrading Expenses 1,276,876,158.78 - - 1,276,876,158.78
Social Development Expenses 264,864,422 48 25,764,387.79 - 290,628,810.27
Foreign Exchange Loss ( Civil works) 2,773,105,778.29 128,309,997.72 - 2,901,415,776.01
Total 66,755,357,745.65 9,532,846,002.95 - 76,288,203,748.60

These expendltures which are now shown as Capltal Work in Progress in Statement of Financlal Position are subjact to
capitalization upon commencement of generation of electricity or the date on which the plant is ready for put to use, whichever

is earlier, Some expenses which are of administrative nature are also included in CW/P as these are considered directly attributable
to the project.

As per the terms of contract agreement with Lot-1 Sino Hydro for civit works, the Base Exchange rate of Rs.75.19 per

been used for conversion of Nepali rupees to dollar for foreign exchange payment to Sino Hydro and the difference
such contrgctual obligation has been capitalized

4 /’L/fQ\’)
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Expenses relating to Vehicle fuel, Mobil and Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance, which have been incurred for project as well as
general administrative purpose of the company, have been apportioned in the ratio of 80:20 between the project and general
administratlon. The management conslders the basls of apportion appropriate and the accounting has been done accordingly.

NOTE 7.3. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities:
Refer Note 6.11 for accounting policy on Income Tax

dhStatements
For the year ended 31 Ashad, 2077 (15 July, 2020)

The company is In constructlon phase and after completion It will get a tax holiday for 10 vears. Therefere, the accounting of
deferred Lax assels or liabilities has nol been starled yet.

NOTE7.4. Inventories:
Refer Note 6.7 for accounting policy on Inventory

Details of inventories, at weighted Average Cost are as follows:

PatUculery As ul As at
Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076
(seneral Stocks 4,696,910.16 4,/8/,499./4
Total 4,696,910.16 4,787,493.74
NOTE 7.5. Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Refer Note 6.5 for accounting policy on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076
Balance with Banks in Current Account
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. Kathmandu 2,938,823 48 1,820,000.40
Sunrise Bank Ltd, Kathmandu 1,782,164.80 202,789,727.61
NABIL Bank Ltd, Kathmandu 8,609,443.80 -
NABIL Bank Ltd, Charikot 4,300,365.95 2,255,035.76
Bank of Kathmandu 1,448,051.84 3,161,945.33
Sub-total{A) 19,078,853.91 210,026,713.10
Balance with Banks in Call Deposit Account N . o ]
Prabhu Bank Limited, Kathmandu 621,541.21 613,679.40
Sunrise Bank Ltd, Kathmandu 5,000.00 5,000.00
NABIL Bank Lid., Kaethmandu 403,652,053.28 831,252,315.81
“«Suvb-‘total(B) 404,278,594.49 831,870,555.21
Total(A+B) 423,357,448.40 1,041,897,708.31

Current Account is non-interest bearing account whereas Call Deposit Account is the interest bearing account without any fixed

deposit period, providing instant access to the fund. Fund is temporarily parked in the call deposit and transferred to current
account only when it is required for making payment.

NOTE 7.6. Other Current Assets:

Details of current assets other than inventories and cash and cash equivalents, which are unsecured and considered good, unless
otherwise stated are as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Advances to Contractor 1,288,735,688.59 1,379,935,755.83

L/C Bank Margin 196,024,845.72 208,916,517.72

Loan to NEA Employees 6,639,175.00 8,329,400.00

;%rdvance to employees-others 966,723.71 360,824.00

19| Jhdvance payments 1,612,077.77 1,009,390.90

Deposits . s 308,900.00 322,100.00
W Et LD, e
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Advance Tax 34,990,828.45 33,491,358.82
COther Advances 18,028,353.82 18,852,835.99
Other Receivables 28,892,403.23 -

Total 1,576,198,956.29 1,651,218,187.26

a) Advances to Contractors represents the amount paid to the contractors as per the terms of the contract agalnst the bank
guarantees.

b} L/CBank margin coinptises of the amount withheld by bank from the company’s bank Afc al U 1ate of 2% of LC amount 4l
the time of opening the LC and NRB cash margin at the time of issuing Bi Bi Ni.

c) NEA staff loan represents the foan facility availed by NEA staff {on deputation to this project) from NEA. Monthly instalment
on loan is deducted from their salary except far the month of Dashain and Tihar and settled to NFA on monthly basis. Closing

balance of outstanding loan which is receivable from staff and payable to NEA at the yearend is shown as Other Current
Assets and Other Current Liabilities (Refer Note-/.14).

d) Noadvances are due from directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other

person. Further, no advenees dre due ftom flrns or privale companles In which any direclor Is ¢ parlner, o director or ¢
memlser.

e) Deposit comprises of the security deposit maintained with Nepal Telecom, Post Office, Sajha petrol pump, Nabil Bank etc.
f} Other receivables represent amount due to be received (rom Tarakoshi V for construciion of Intercennection system.

NOTE7.7. Lguity Shere Capital:

The par value of each equity share of company is NPR. 100 and details of share capital is as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat
Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076
Ordinary shares 10,550,000,000 10,590,000,600
Convertible preference shares (equity component only} - -
Irredeemable preference shares {equity component only) - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - -
Total 10,590,000,000 10,550,000,000
Ordinary shares
Particulars Asat Asat
Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076
Authorlzed Capital
110,000,000 Shares of NPR 100 each 11,000,00C,000 11,000,000,600
Issuec
105,900,000 Shares of NPR 100 each 10,5%0,000,000 10,5%0,690,000
Subscribed and Paid up capital
105,900,000 Shares of NPR 100 each 10,590,000,000 10,590,000,000
Ordinary share amount 10,580,000,000 10,590,000,000

i}  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of NRs.100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vate per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholder.

ii)  The detail of Sharzholdings pattern at the time of issue of shares was as follows:

Group Group Name Holding %
Group A —Promoter 1 Nepal Electricity Authority 41%
2 Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 6%
3 Citizen Investment Trust 2%
?{ 4 Rastriya Bectaa Sansthan 7 29:”'/‘;;‘,“5“?'\4;\
Qg . W‘FL 9\
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Group B—Other 1 Contributors of Employees Provident Fund 17.28%
2 Staff of Company and NEA 3.84%
3 Staff of Lender Institutions 2.88%
4 Local resldent of Dolkha 10%
5 General Public 15%
Total 100%
lil) Delails of equily shares held by Promaoters/ Local public and generat public is as given below:
Shareholders Holding % Amount (NPR)
Group 'A’ Promoter Share
Nepal Electricity Authority (43,419,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 41% 4,341,900,000
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited (6,354,000 shares @ NER 100 each) 6% 635,400,000
Citizen Investment [rust (2,118,000 shares @ NI’K 100 each) 2% ILEO0,000
Rastriya Beema Sansthan (2,118,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 2% 211,800,000
_ Sub Total } 51% 5,400,900,000
Group ‘B’ Ordinary Share _
Local public of project affected area (10,590,000 shares @ NPR 100 each} 10% 1,059,000,000
General public (41,301,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 39% 4,130,100,000
Sub Total 49% 5,189,100,000
Grand Total {105,900,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 100% 10,590,000,000

a) Equity shares issued to the local public of project site, dolakha are in lock in period.
b) Shares of UTKHPL are listed In the Nepal Stock Exchange. Shares issued to Contributors of Employees Provident Fund,
Staff of Company & NEA, Staff of Lender Institutions and General Public are being traded in the secondary market, hence

it is categorised as shares issued to general public,

iv)  There are no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or kind, or bought
back during the reporting date. There are no securities which are convertible into equity shares.

NOTE 7.8. Retained Earnings

Details of retained earnings of the company is as follows:

Particulars

As at As al

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Balance at the beginning of the year {638,515,452.52) {554,609,901.35)
Profit/{Loss) for the Year {154,063,754.61) {53,175,739.07}
Prior Period Adjustment 1,985,625.00 1,244,957.75
Share issue expenses - (31,974,765.84)
Balance at the end of the year {790,593,582.13} {638,515,452.52)

Retained earnings is the loss that the company has incurred till date.

NOTE7.9. LongTerm Loans:

a) Nepal Government Loan through NEA

A Long-Term loan agreement for NRs, 11,080 Million has been entered between the company and Nepal Electricity Authority on
2070.04.01 for the Government loan to be provided via Nepal Electricity Authority of which NRs. 11,000 Million was received till
F.Y 2075/76. Additional long term loan of NRs. 1 Billion each was allotted by Nepal Gavernment in its budget of the F.Y 2076/77 &
F.Y 2077/78, of which NRs.1 Billion has been received. Total Joan obtained from Nepal Government via NEA till £.Y.2076/77 is NRs.

12,000 Million. So, the balance long term loan commitment to be received in the F.Y 2077.78 is 1,000 Million.

@U&’a@g/
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b) Loan from non-banking institutions

Initially at the time of financial closure, Long-Term loan agreements for NRs. 20,000 Million were entered by the company with

various non-banking institutions viz. Employees Provident Fund, Nepa! Doorsanchar Company Limited, Citizen Investment Trust,
Rastriya Beema Sansthan at various dates.

As the cost of project has increased from NPR 35,290 Million (excluding 1DC) to NPR 49,296 Million {excluding 1DC) (Refer Note-
8.1) due to various reasons, company has requested existing institutional lenders for additional fong term loan and has received
commitment from them for NRs. 8,000 Million to be provided in the ratio of previous loan amounts. So, the total long term loan
from Jending institutions after fulfilment of additional commitment will be NRs. 28,000 Million, out of which Rs. 22, 500 Million
has been received till the end of F.Y.2076/77.

{Note:-Apart from above mentioned 22,500 Million, additional NRs. 3 Billion was obtained from the Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh
(EPE) as the bridge gap loan against the additional long term loan commitment of Rs. 4 Billion, pending finalization of
supplementary loan agreement (Refer Note-7 13) Bridge gap loan has been converted Lo long term loan in the F.Y 20/// /8.
$o, tha balance long tarm loan commitmant to ba raceived in tha F.Y 2077/78 ig 2,500 Million.

Long term loan obtained and utilized for the development of projoct till the end of F.Y 2076/077 is NRs. 34,500 Million and the
detalls are as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076
GoN through Nepal Electricity Authority 12,000,000,000 11,500,000,000
Sub-Total {Unsecured Loan} 12,000,000,000 11,500,000,000
From Promoters/ Other institutions:
Karmachari Sanchay Kosh {EPF) 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd. {NTC) 6,500,000,000 6,000,000,000
Rastriya Beema Sansthan (RBS) 2,200,000,000 2,000,000,000
Magarik Lagani Kosh (CIT) 2,800,000,000 2,000,000,000
Sub-Total (Secured Loan) 22,500,000,000 20,000,000,000
Total 34,500,000,000 31,500,000,000

Balance Long term loan commitment to be received in the F.¥- 2077/78 is 3,500 Million.
¢) Security for Long Term Loan.

Long term loans obtained from Employees Provident fund, Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited, Citizen Investment Trust and
Rastriya Beama Sansthan are all secured loans.

i. Middle Marshyangdi Powerhouse having capacity of 70 MW owned by Nepal Electricity Authority, has been solely mortgaged
in the name of Employees Provident fund as a security for the agreed long term loan and interest capitalized during
construction {{DC) on such loan.

li. The land, property, plantand equipment owned by the UkHPLitself at present and to be owned in future has been mortgaged
in the name of Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited, Citizen Investment Trust and Rastriya Beema Sansthan as security for the
long term loan availed and interest capitalized during construction (IDC) on such loan.

NOTE 7.10. Provisions:
Refer Note 6.13 for accounting policy on Provisions, Contingencies and Commitments

Provisions for gratuity has been booked @ 8.33% per month of the basic salary pursuant to Section 53 (1) of the Labour Act 2074
and provisions for leave encashment has been booked as per prevailing regulations of company.

For NEA employees’ on deputation, provision has not been made for the accumulated leave which are not eligible for encashment

before retirement, since the obligation of post-employment benefits of NEA employees’ lies with the NEA. Details of provisions
created is given hereunder:

Particulars As at Asat

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Provision for Gratuity 3,778,242.00 664,310.52

Provision for Leave Encashment 11,507,285.55 8,764,718.67

Provision of Performance Incentive 10,274,599.60 -
Provision for Audit Fees / — 1,031,125.00
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Miscelianeous Provision

70,000.00

Total

26,661,252.15

10,460,154.19

NOTE 7 11 Interest on long Term Lean:
Refer Note 6.5 for accounting policy aon Borrowing Cost

Interest during construction period {IDC) net of applicable tax on long term loan provided to the company by the GoN and
various lender institutions has been classified as non-current liabilities since as per the loan agreement, payment of interest and

principle starts after completion of the project only. Details are as follows:

Particulars Asat As at

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

GoN through Nepal Electricity Authority 7,324,305,4/9.3/ 5,554,655,403.96
Karmachari $anchay Kosh {EPE) 9,432,345,5940.60 7,476,532,968.51
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Lld, (NTC) 4,550,380,886.65 3,589,078,433.12
Rastriya Beema Sansthan 1,497,178,835.07 1,149,618,716.08
Nagarik Lagani Kosh (C11) 1,870,445,195.23 1,458,031,997.77
Total 24,674,656,326.92 14,227,517,520 44

Total IDC {On long term loan and short term loan) has been capitalised in CWIP (Note- 7.2)

NOTE 7.12. Other Non-Current Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Retention Payables (Upon completion of DLP) 986,297,777.23 843,384,556.22
Total 986,297,777.23 843,384,556.22

Retention money is deducted @ 5% of the Interim Payment Certificate (IPC) amount at the time of payment as per the terms of
the contract. Company has obligation to refund half of the retention money upon completion of the project (shown as current
liabilities in Note- 7.14 below) and balance half upon the completion of defect Hability period hence shown as non-current
liabilities. Since the fund available with the company is only the borrowed fund (i.e. interest bearing fund, retention payabie has

not been earmarked,

NOTE 713 Short Term 1oans:

Short term loans has been obtained as a bridge gap loan to manage the financial requirement of the project when thore was delay

in obtaining the long term loan. Details of short-term loan is as follows:

Particulars As at As at

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) 2,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh (EPF) 3,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Nabil Bank Ltd 1,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Total 6,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

a) Shoert term |loan of NRs. 3 Billion has been obtained from the Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh (EPF) as the bridge gap loan against
the additional long term loan commitment of Rs.4 Billion pending finalization of supplementary long term loan agreement. It

has heen converted to long term loan in the F.Y 2077/78.

b) Asperthe long term loan agreement of with lenders, in case of shortfall of fund it is the responsibility of NEA and company
to manage the fund. Accordingly, short term loan of Rs. 2 Billion has been obtained from Nepal Electricity Authority {(NEA).
¢} Out of short term loan of Rs. 2 Billion obtainad from Nabil bank, Rs.1 Billion has been repaid in F.Y- 2076/77. Balance Rs. 1

Billion has been repaid in the F.Y- 2077/78.
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NOTE 7.14. Other Current Liabilities:

Details of other current liabilities is as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Expenses Payable 753,/74,413.95 1,796,904,90/.30
Retention Payables {On CoD} 986,297,777.23 843,384,556.23
Other Deposit 2,441,249.68 73,536,642.28
Earnest Money Deposit, £0,000.00 600,500.00
Staff Payables 358,789.73 386,266.22
NEA Employees loan o 6,639,175.00 8,329,400.00
Tax Deduction at Source 273,648,987.84 1G4,779,039.27
VAT Payable o 7,304.62 12,825,589.11
Other Miscellaneous Liabilities 78,776,5976.87 27,306,082.79
Short Term Loan interest payable 209,839,503.94 -
Slale Lhiegues o 6G8,094.27 550,033.21
[ Total 2,312,512,673.13 2,928,608,016.41

d) Bxpenses Payabie colnprises of payable willi respect Lo supply of setvices under construction centracts and supply of goods

from the parties.

b) Short term loan interest payable represent interest payable to NEA and EPF.

c) Reteation moneyis deducted @ 5% of the Interim Payment Certificate (IPC) amount at the time of payment as per the terms
of the contract. Company has obligation to refund half of the retention money upon completion of the project (shown as
current liablities} and balance half upon the completion of defect liability period hence shown as non-current liabilities. (Refer
Note-7.12). Since the fund available with the company is only the borrowed fund (i.e. interest bearing fund) retention payable
has not been earmarked.

d) NEA staff loan represents the loan facility availed by NEA staff {on deputation to this project). Instalments of such loan is
deducted from their salary and paid to NEA on monthly basis. Closing balance of outstanding loan which is receivable from
staff and payable to NEA at the yearend is shown as Other Current Assets {Refer Note-7.6) and Olhier Current Liabiiilies.

e} Other miscellaneous liabilities represents the payable other than for the supply of goods and service by the parties.

f) Stale cheque represents the cheque which is not presented in bank but has exceeded the time limit of 6 months from the

date of issug of cheque. Such cheque will be reversed and booked as miscellaneous income only after the period of 3 years
from the date of issue.

NOTE 7.15. Revenue.
Refer Note 6.8 for accounting policy on Revenue Recognition

The cemmercial operation of company has not started. So as on the end of reporting period, the revenue from sale of etectricity
ts nil.

NOTE 7.16. Generation Expenses:

As the commercial operation of company has not started, there is no generation expenses of the company.

NOTE 7.17. Other Income:

Other income includes inceme from activities other than primary business of generation of electricity. Details presented as follows:

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

\ncome from sale of tender forms 984,775.00 266,000.00

Examination Fee 63,500.00 -

Miscellaneous Income 447,491.53 296,956.62
Total 1,495,766.53

NOTE 7.18. Foreign Currency Exchange Gain / {Loss):

ot by o

Refer Note 6.9 for accounting policy on Foreign Currencies Transacti
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The exchange difference arising due to the difference in foreign currency exchange rate at the date of recognition of expenses
and date of payment is shown under this head.

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Foreign Currency Fxchange Gain/(Loss) (90,780,466.83) 2,770,124.93
Total (90,780,466.83) 2,770,124.93

Foreign currency exchange loss has increased in the F.Y 2076/77 due to retranslation of Retention payable at the foreign currency
exchange rate prevailing at the Balance sheet date.

NOTE 7.19. Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

The company has practice of charglng those adminlstratlve expenses which are not directly attributable to constructton of project
in the Statemant of Profit or Loss. Details as given hereunder:

As the company is in construction phase and no profits have been earned by the company, provision for bonus has not been
provided.

Vehicle fuel, Maobil and Repair & Maintenange, license fees, Asset insurance fees have heen apportioned in the ratio of 80:20
between the project and general administration on tha basis of estimated time devoted by vehicle for Project related work and

administrative work,

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076
Salaries and other employee cost 17,107,807.28 13,143,820.34
Contribution to Provident Fund 899,727.30 380,892.44
Gratuity Expenses 3,119,538.48 -
Contribution to retirement fund 52,702.20 43,363.80
Staff Welfare - -
Medical Expenses Reimbursement 686,176.00 579,041.00
Leave Encashment Expenses -
- Leave encashed 541,819.50 299,649.96
- Expenses for accumulated leave 2,764,180.28
NLA staff overhead expenses 2,787,077.00 2,201,920.40
Water and Electricity 361,738.26 399,736.15
Advertisernent and business promaotion 169,400.00 393,900.00
Annual General Meeting Expenses - 2,599,981.67
Board Meeting Allowance 732,000.00 636,000.00
Recrultment Expenses 31,000.00
Other Meeting Allowances 595,100.00 1,812,750.00
Notice Publishing expenses 1,600,828.00 944,150.84
Ceremonial expenses 350,695.00 352,546.00
Auditors Remuneration & Expenses
- Audit Fee 565,000.00 565,000.00
- Tax Audit Fee 16%,500.00 165,500.00
- Internal Audit Fee 296,625.00 296,625.00
- Audit Expenses 211,828.75 236,194.75
License fees 338,206.40 432,936.00
Assets Insurance Fees M 228,392.7% 255,009.96
Organizational De pment Expen_s_,_es 438,680.00 205,500.00
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Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Gift and Donatlon 353,000.00 695,200.00
Fuel & Mobli (Vehicle) 2,696,519.73 3,167,418.36
Hospitality and Refreshment 906,757.20 1,253,147.64
Other Profession Charges/K1S Exp. 4,022,580.60 550,000.00
Legal and professional Expenses 990,332.00 1,194,850.00
Telephone 208,279.47 311,173.33
Printing and Stationery 1,714,185.56 1,865,679.26
Books and periodicals 444 990 0G 431,441 1%
Rent 1 3,003,000.00 3,003,000 GO.
Repair aﬁdll\‘flaintenance 6,406,061.80 6,564,248.72
Tiffin expenses o 408,379.14 485,084.22
Training and Drevelopment 525,450.00 184,905.00
[ravelling expenses 1,584,967.25 2,066,872.41
Postage & Telegram - 33,450.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,219,394.56 2,756,967.87
Consultancy Services 1,025,000.00 1,694,276.00
Other services 741,537.19 513,775.97
Total 61,698,456.69 53,208,094.24

As Covid-19 pandemic started from Chaitra 2076 onwards, AGM for the F.Y- 2075/76 could not be held. So, AGM expenses in Nil.

NOTE 7.20. Finance Income:

Interest income earnad from temporary reinvestrnent of borrowed funds is deducted from interest capitalized in CWIP, There is
no other finance income of company.

NOTE 7.21. Finance Costs:

Financial charges such as loan processing fees and bank charges are shown under this head. Details as given hereunder:

Particulars Forthe Year ended For the Year ended

Ashad 31, 2077 Ashad 31, 2076

Bank Charges 207,622.00 252,292.00
Total 207,622.00 252,292.00

NOTE 7.22. Contingent Liabilities
Refer Note 6.13 for accounting policy on Provisions, Contingencies and Commitments

i. A case lodged by P.R.Prakash J.v. in High Court, daiming for lass of its equipment after termination of road construction
contract was decided in favour of Company. P.R. Prakash JV has submitted an appeal to Supreme Court against the decision
of High Court which is now pending with Supreme Court for decision. However, the possibility of Supreme court decision
against the company is remote hence no contingent liability is expected.

ii. Company has also lodged a writ petition to Supreme Court against PR Prakash JV against the decision made by Arbitration

Tribunal and Appeliate Court and also against the company, As the Tribunal and Court had decided entitlement of NPR 5,972,
98,867.85 by the contractor PR Prakash v, this amount has been already paid through the district court along with interest
and fee of the court (the court had taken NPR 6,45,53,406.41 from company's Bank A/C No. 9706017500002 in fiscal year
2070/071). No further liability is expected even if case is not decided in fayour of the company.
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NOTE 7.23. Reclassification & Regrouping

Previous yvear's figure has been reclassified or regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with the current period’s
figure.

B.  Other Explanalory noles:

NOTE8.1. Increases in Project Cost:

Initially, the project cost was estimated as NPR 35,280 Million {excluding interest during construction). But due to change in design,
price escalation, quantity variation, changes in foreign exchange rate, prolongation of construction period due to massive
earthquake of 2072 and blockade in Nepal- india Border area, the project costs have been revised to NPR 49,296 Million (excluding
interest during construction) which is approved by the Board of the Directors dated Chaitra 30, 2074.
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NOTE 8.2.

o

Unsettled amount of the contractors:

The company has assigned various contractors to construct the access road and bridges splitting the whole task into different
packages. Though Lhe lask assigned has alieady been compleled, the payment is yet to be finalized since the contractors of
Package A and Package B of Dolakha—Singati Segment have demanded additlonal amount. The total amount of thelr demand

is NPR 33.47 Million which is yet to be finalized by the company. Similary, the final payment of Package | and Package IV of
Singati — Lamabagar Segment is yet to be finalized.

NOTE 8.3. Interim Reporting

Interiin reporls have been publicly reported in accordance with the regulrements of Securilies Board of Nepdl (SEBON) and
Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE). These requirements are materially atigned wish the provisions of NAS 34,

NOTE 84. Related Party Transactions:
Namo of Relatad Partios

Nepal Electricity Authority, Napal Door Sanchar Cormpany Limited, Rastriya Beema Sansthan, and Citizen Investment Trust are
in the capacity of both promoter shareholders and lender institutions providing the fong term loan to the company. Nepal
Electricity Authority is also Lhe sole purchaser of Lhe electriclty generated by the company, During the year, the company has
recelved toat of NRs.3 Bllllon Ntoin thern. Amount owed by the company to related partles at the end of F.Y - 2076/ // Is NRs.
24,500 Million and the interest owed on such loan to them is NPR 15,384.88 Million.

Long Term Loans {Secured and Unsecured):

The details of secured and unsecured loan from related parties are as follows:

Opening balance Loan received in Closing balance
S.N. | Name of the related party of loan as on EY 2076/77 of loan as on Remarks
01.04.2076 31.03.2077
1 | Nepal Doorsanchar 6,000,000,000 900,000,000 | 6,500,000,000 | Secured loan
Company Ltd. (NTC) Refer Note-7.9 (c}.
2 Rastriva Beema Sansthan 2,000,000,000 800,000,000 2,800,000,000 | Secured loan
Refer Note-7.9 {c).
3 Nagarik Lagani Kosh{CIT) 2,000,000,000 800,000,000 2,800,000,000 | Secured loan
Refer Note-7.9 {c).
4 | Government of Nepal via 11,500,000,000 500,000,000 | 12,000,000,000 | Unsecured loan (Against
NEA __| the guarantee of NEA)
Total 21,500,000,000 3,000,000,000 | 24,500,000,000

Capitalized Interest:

The details of interest capitatized for loan received from related parties is as follows:

5.N. Name of the related party Opening balance of interest capltalized Closing balance of
interest capitalizedas | inthe F.Y 2076/77 | interest capitalized as
on 01.04.2076 on 31.03.2077
1 Government of Nepal via NEA 5,553,655,403.96 1,770,650,075.42 7,324,305,479.37
2 | Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd. {NTC) 3,589,678,433.12 960,702,453.53 4,550,380,886.65
3 Rastriya Beema Sansthan 1,149,618,716.08 347,560,118.95 1,497,178,835.07
4 Nagarik Lagani Kosh (CIT) 1,458,031,997.77 412,413,197.46 1,870,445,195.23
Total 11,750,984,550.93 3,491,325,845.40 15,242,310,396.32
Short Term Borrowing:
S.N. | Name of the related party Opening balance of toanreceivedin | Closing balance | Remarks
loan as on 01.04.2076 F.Y 2076/77 of loan as on
31.03.2077
1 Nepal Electricity Authority 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 2,0600,000,000 | Unsecured
N A m yah! Loan
@/ /@ &} & -E' ‘ Page 29 of/32
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NOTE 8.5. Board of Directors and Board meeting Allowance

a} Composition of the Board

UTKHPL Bourd cutnprises of six (6) Tull Uine and two (2) invilee members, They collectively bring o wide repertoire of skills and
considerable experience in their respective fields, which elevates the quality of the Board’s decision-making. Of these six full-
time members, four members are from NEA {Managing Diteclor of NEA and head of Finance, Generatlon and Englneering
departments) and one member each from the Ermployees Providenl Fund {EPF) and Nepal Telecom (NTC). Similarly, one
member each from Citizen Investment Trust (CIT) and Rastriya Beama Sansthan {RBS) are in the Board as permanent invitee
members. Managing Director of NEA will be the Chairman of UTKHPL board with the consensus of board members.

UTKHPL's Board of Directors plays a primary role in ensuring good governance and functioning of the Company. All statutory
and olher significant & maleriad information is placed before Lhe Beard 10 enable it Lo discharge its responsibility of stralegic
supetvision of the Company and decision making as trustees of the shareholders

b)  Board meetings and allowances

The Company Secretary drafts the agenda for each meeting alang with the explanatory notes The Members of the Board have

complete freadom to express their opinion and decisions are taken after detailed discussion. Tetal 15 Board meetings were
held durlng the .Y, 2076/77.

Board meeting allowance incurred during F.Y. 2076/77 is NRs. 732,000 whereas it was NRs, 6, 36,000.00 in the previcus year.

Except the following transactions, UTKHPL has not conducted any other transactions with the directors or their relatives durtng
the financial year,

S. | Name of BOD Role Company | Board Meeting | Other Meeting | Total

N Allowance (Rs.) | Allowance (Rs.}

1 Mr. Kul Man Ghising Chairman NEA 56,000.00 - 56,000.00
2 mir. Dilliram Adhikari Member NTC 56,000.00 - | 56,000.00
3 Mr. Om Krishan Shrestha Member EPF 64,000.00 4,000.00 68,000.00
4 Mr. Lekhanath Koirala Member NEA 64,000.00 36,000.00 | 100,000.00
5 Mr. Madhav Prasad Koirala Member NEA 28,000.00 - 28,000.00
=) Mr. Madan Timsina Member NEA 44,000.00 - 44.000.00
7 Mr.Jagadishwar Man Singh Member NEA 32,000.00 - 32,000.00
8 Mr. Rabindra Chaudhary Member NEA 4,000.00 - 4,000.00
9 Mr.Raman Nepal invitee Member CIT 40,000.00 - 40,000.00
10 | Mr.Mahash Rimal. Invitee Mambar nns 56,000.00 £G,000.00

NOTE86. Key Managerial Personnel and their Remuneration

Chief Executive Officer {CEO}, Project Chief and Accounts Chief are considered to be the Key Managerial Personnel. The

Company has not entered into any other transaction {other than payment of employee benefits) with the Key Management
Personnel or their relatives during the vear.

Short term benefit paid to the key managerial personnel during the F.Y.2076/77 are as follows.

S.N | Designation Short Term Benefit {NRs)

1 Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) 31,41,143
2 Project Chief 21,40,748
3 Accounts Chief 13,70,248

Note-Remuneration as shown above includes salary, allowances, company’s contribution to provident funds, medical facilities
and perquisites valued as per income-tax rules.

NOTE 8.7. Capital Commitment:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (including amount payable through LC) and not

provided for are shown as below. Capital commitment has been disclosed without considering the price adjustment and
variation orders. Capital commltm TRGR ,
QQ/‘ 12 / Page 30 of 32
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Notes forming part of the Fmancu‘i
For the year ended 31 Ashad, 2077 {15 July, 202

S.
Rernainin
No Name of Contractor Contract No. Summary of work | Currency | Contract Amount Amountg
1 | Norconsult AS Lahmeyer Int'| UTKHEP/CS/01- Consultancy NPR 910,215,805 -
GmbH JV ~ ]2065/066 usD 31,239,148 385,675
2 |Sinc Hydro Corporat:on Limited | UTKHEP/03-2064/065 | Main Civil Works NPR 13,371,775,235 -
3 | Texmaco Rail & Engineering UTKHEPR/D4-2066/067 | Hydro- NPR 294,310,542 171,664,468
Ltd. Mechanical EURCQ
Works 10,574,458 586,681
4 | Andritz Hydro GmbH UTKHEP/05-2066/067 | Electro- NPR 452,918,283 153,718,407
Mechanical usD
Works 90,792,651 885,564
5 |KEC Internationat Ltd. UTKHEP/14-2066/06/ | IL & Substation NER /58,170,189,30 118,601,160
UsD 24,886,379 5,778,771
6 |Bino Birju Nirman Sewa UTKHEP/NCB/01- Compound Wall NPR 3,830,337 3,830,337
075/76 Const.
/ UTRHLP/NCBANL- Rackfall Barrier _—
81-G8 37,821,914 37,821,
G._il GS IV . 076/77 Const NPR ) 7821 914
8 | Mainawati Steel Industries Pvt. | UTKHEP/NCB/EW/01- | Supply of Pole.t; & NPR 5,824,256 5,824,256
Ltd. 2076/77 Pole Accessories
9
NEA Engineering Company Ltd. | RKHEP/DD/01/074/75 gzrr::?etanc" NPR 92,132,524 32,246,384
10 High Rimalaya Hydro Construction of
RKHER/ICB/01 NPR 395,815,265 374,846,464
Construction Ltd. /1CB/01/076/77 | Exploratory
Tunnel
11 i
Mahagauri-Simpani JV RKHEP/NCE/01/076/77 | COTSTUCION OF 1 ypp 45,200678| 45,200,678
Mule Track
Total NPR 16,368,015,029 043,754,068
LSH 146,918,178 7,050,010
EURO 10,574,458 686,681
NOTE 88. Impact of Covid-19:

Due to Covid-19 pandemic, project has been delayed as the Nepal Governmant daclared countrywide lockdown from 11
Chaitra, 2076 as an effort to restrict the outbreak of Covid-1% {corona virus). During the lockdown period project work was
slowed down since the work was to be carried out with the Himited workers who were present at the project site at the time
of lockdown, local public cbstructed the mobility of vehicles & workers at the project site and barrier in supply and
transportation of construction materials, labour etc, Also, showing the problem of lockdown and health hazards, LOT-2
Contractor Texmacg, India, did not manufacture and supply the equipment on time and foreign personnel of Consultant JVNL
and other Contractors could not travel to Nepal. Around 50 ernployees were infected by Covid-19 and staffs travelling to site
were required to stay in quarantine for certain number of days.

In spite of all the above problems, during the lockdown period also construction work was continued by maintaining the
workplace safety measures and complying the instructions & guidelines issued by Nepal Government, local government and
other government bedies, so that the project work is less impacted by Covid-19.

NOTE89. New Revised commercial operation date (RCOD)
Company is in the process of obtaining new Revised Commercial Operation date from Nepal Electricity Authority,

NOTE 8.10. Rolwaling Khola Hydroelectric and Diversion Project:

0&/

Page 31 0f 32

4

As the second stage project development, UTKHPL has obtained the survey license on 2074.05.21 from DoED for conducting
the survey of Rolwaling Khola Hydroelectric project [RKHEP) by 2076.05.20 for generation of additional 20.66 megawatt of
electricity. Survey license has been further extended until 2078.05.20. NEA Engineering Company Limited has been appointed

as the consultant for the detailed designing of RKHEP and the detailed designing of the project is in the final stage, UTKHPL
itself will construct and operate RKHER- T 2rss
2 P22
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Currently preparatory works are ongoing at Rolwaling Project site. A contract has been signed for the construction of
exploratory tunnels and connecting road and the related works are being executed. A contract has also been signed for the
canstruction of mule track from lower lamabagar to Rikhu village as an access to the Headwork's Site. Evaluation of pre-
qualification of bidders for Engineering Procurement Construction (EPC} of Rolwaling Khola Hydroelectric project has been

. complsted. Application has been made to Power Trada Department of NEA for Powar Purchase Agreement (PPA} and it is in
e process of diseussion.

NOTE 8.11. Subsequent Event:

There has not been any sighilicant reporlable event afler Lhe reporling date which requires to be either adjusted or disclosed.

NOTE 8.12. Approval of Finanitial Slalernents.

The accompanled financlal statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in its meating
held on lestha 28, 2078 { June 11, 2021} and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.

Suresh Raj Khakurel Mukunda Adhikari  Bigyan Prasad Shrestha
Finance Chief Accounts Chief Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors of UTKHPL

Qﬁ& Auditors

Madan Timsina 0j Sllwal Lekhanath Koirala
Member Member Member

”~

Damodar Prasad Subedl Dilliram Adhikari Hit; 4 Shakya CAMSatish Subedi CA. Naresh Dhung 5
Alt. Member Member Chaygnan S.Subedi & Associales  N.D. & Assouciales
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants

A

Date: jestha 28, 2073
Place: Kathmandu, Negal
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